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Figure 1. óArden Chaseô, 22 Arden Crescent, Rosanna (source: Nelson Alexander 2017) 

 
 

History 
 
The present-day suburb of Rosanna, located within the Parish of Keelbundoora, is situated 
a few kilometres north of the early township of Warringal, which was established in 1840 
(now Heidelberg). This area was part of the Heidelberg Road Board from 1860 and later, 
from 1871, the Shire of Heidelberg. The City of Heidelberg, proclaimed in 1934, was 
absorbed into the larger City of Banyule in 1994. The suburb is undulating with several 
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steep inclines, and there are views towards the distant hills in the north and east. Salt 
Creek flow south through Rosanna to meet the Yarra at Heidelberg. 
 
A large part of present-day Rosanna occupies Crown Allotment 5 in the Parish of 
Keelbundoora. This was first purchased in 1840 by land speculator James Watson, who 
named the estate óRose Annaô after his wife (Blake 1977: 230; HHS). By the 1850s the 
Rosanna Estate, as it became known, took up a large part of this allotment. After a change 
of ownership, the property was leased to tenant farmers, establishing the area north of 
Heidelberg proper as a small-scale farming district. The need for access to the north led to 
a road being constructed through the Rosanna Estate in 1861. The Rosanna Estate 
comprised over 800 acres in the 1880s. The land was used mainly for dairying and 
orchards into the early twentieth century. 
 
There was some speculation in the 1880s that a railway connection to Melbourne might 
herald closer settlement and suburban development, but this failed to eventuate. An 
improved direct rail link from Melbourne to Heidelberg was opened in 1901. In 1902 the 
railway line was extended from Heidelberg to Rosanna with a railway station built on the 
Rosanna Estate in 1906. This triggered the subdivision of farms for residential 
development. The open country and pleasant scenery around Rosanna attracted the 
interest of golfers who established a golf course on the Salt Creek in 1910.  
 
A wave of subdivision occurred in the 1920s following the electrification of the railway line 
(this significantly reduced the travel time by rail to Melbourne and attracted home buyers 
who were commuters to the city). Rosanna emerged in the early 1920s as an embryonic 
suburban centre with a post office and a school. Further development ensued over the next 
two decades, with commercial activity centred around the Rosanna railway station. The 
undulating country and scenic views were a drawcard for new home-owners. The 
Depression delayed development in the early 1930s, thought there was renewed building 
activity in the 1940s. There was considerable interwar housing development. The area was 
further developed in the postwar era, and a large proportion of housing stock in the area 
dates to the 1950s and 1960s. Part of the Rosanna golf course was excised for housing in 
the late 1960s, and this site was developed by Merchant Builders as the renowned Elliston 
Estate with innovative contemporary landscaping by its namesake Ellis Stones.  
 
Place history 
 
The allotment known as 22 Arden Crescent, Rosanna, forms part of a larger parcel of land 
that is part of Crown Allotment 5 in the Parish of Keelbundoora, County of Bourke (Parish 
plan of Keelbundoora). The whole of Crown Allotment 5 was first purchased in 1840 by 
land speculator James Watson, who named the estate óRose Annaô after his wife (Blake 
1977: 230; information from HHS). The Rosanna Estate was leased to tenant farmers from 
the late 1850s and a road was constructed through the Estate in 1861. The Rosanna 
Estate, which comprised 815 acres in 1885, was sold in the late 1880s (HHS); it was most 
likely subdivided after this time. A painting by notable Heidelberg School artist Walter 
Withers, titled A Bright Winterôs Morning, 1894, depicts Rosanna Road and the Rosanna 
Estate as it would have appeared in the 1890s, and is indicative of the closely settled rural 
landscape and landscape character that was the setting for óArden Chaseô in 1905 
(sources: National Gallery of Victoria online collection; óArtists Footstepsô website) 
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Figure 2: A view of the closely settled farming country of Rosanna in the 1890s is seen in Walter Withersô 

work, A Bright Winterôs Morning, painted in 1894; this depicts Rosanna Road, looking south (source: 

National Gallery of Victoria online collection) 

 
Heidelberg and its sparsely settled surrounds remained relatively isolated from Melbourne 
proper in the 1880s and 1890s on account of the indirect railway connection and poor 
roads. A new more direct railway line was built in 1901-02 and a railway station opened at 
Heidelberg in 1902. A railway station opened on the Rosanna Estate in 1906. The arrival 
of the railway attracted those seeking country blocks and villa sites in the outlying country 
areas of Heidelberg. Rosanna as a suburb did not exist at that time.  
 
The timber residence at 22 Arden Crescent, Rosanna, known as óArden Chaseô was built 
in 1905 as a farmhouse for Edward Harry Munt on a rural allotment of 15 acres. English-
born Munt was a manufacturerôs agent and importer, who had moved to Melbourne from 
Sydney. In 1905 Edward Munt was rated £50 for a house and 15 acres of land on Rosanna 
Road, Heidelberg (Heidelberg RB 1905). The house and land were accessed by a private 
drive off Rosanna Road. Part of present-day Arden Crescent follows the alignment of the 
original private approach to the house, which extended west off Rosanna Road, swept in 
a curve around the front of the house, and terminated at the rear western side of the house. 
It is presumed that Edward Munt and his family resided at óArden Chaseô from c1905 to 
1911. In 1906 an advertisement appeared for a cow and calf for sale at óArden Chaseô, 
Rosanna-rd, Heidelbergô (Age, 22 December 1906, p. 9). Edwardôs widow Mary Rebecca 
(née Elliot) and their four children presumably continued to reside at the house until it was 
sold in 1913. 
 
A photograph of the house that appeared in a real estate agentôs advertisement for Arden 
Chase Estate, dated 1924, shows a Federation-era residence with a prominent tower. 
Decorative Federation-era elements to the house include half-timbering, stucco work to the 
front gable, a timber archway to the front verandah, timber-bracketed window hoods to the 
façade, terracotta capping and finials to the roof ridge, and decorative chimney pots. The 
tower, which was noted in 1908 and presumably part of the original design, was unusual 
for a timber home and not in keeping with the typical architectural style of the period 
(Edward H. Munt, Probate papers, 1911, PROV). As well as responding to the setting and 
elevated siting of the house to take advantage of district views, the square tower and 
asymmetrical form of the façade is suggestive of the earlier Italianate-style dwellings of the 
Victorian era that were typical of middle-class home builders in Melbourneôs more affluent 
suburbs. The tower identified the house as a comfortable country estate and gave its 
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owners a view over their domain and across the surrounding fields of farmland and to the 
wider district.  
 
Selection of the dramatic elevated site for the house can be understood from the detail 
given in a military plan dated 1930, which shows the drive to the house loosely 
corresponding to a contour line or ridge line (see Figure 3). óArden Chaseô (centre of image) 
is one of only a few buildings shown in the area at that time (Imperial Army 1930, One inch 
to a mile Army topographic survey plan) 
 

 
Figure 3 One inch to a mile Army topographic survey plan, 1930 (source: private collection) 

Advertised for sale in 1908, the property óArden Chaseô was described as follows: 
 

ñArden Chaseò. About 5 Min. Walk from Rosanna Railway Station, on Eltham Line 
ï W.B. and Rough Cast VILLA, of 9 Rooms and Tower, in Perfect Order, Erected 
3 Years Ago; Buggy Shed, Stable, Laundry, Cow-shed, Yan Yean, Bath-heater; 
Land, About 2½ Acres, including Young Orchard; But Additional Acreage May be 
Had Up to 12İ Acresô (Argus, 24 October 1908, p. 3). 

 
Edward H. Munt of óArden Chaseô, Heidelberg, died in 1911 (Argus, 1 April 1911, p. 13). 
Probate papers for the Estate of Edward H. Munt includes a description of the real estate 
in his name in 1911, being óall that piece of land containing fifteen (15) acres or thereabouts 
é on which is erected an eight-roomed weatherboard houseô and valued at £1250. Muntôs 
personal estate included a small amount of livestock. (Edward H. Munt, Probate papers, 
1911, PROV). The following year, his widow Mary R. Munt is rated £75 for a house and 15 
acres of land (Heidelberg RB 1912). In 1913 the house and 15 acres of land was 
transferred from Mary R. Munt to Gilbert Charles Proctor (Heidelberg RB 1913).  

 
By 1914, Gilbert John Proctor, a farmer, and his wife Jessie Margaret (née Wells), were 
listed as residing at Rosanna Road, Heidelberg (ER 1914, 1919). Prior to 1914 they were 
living elsewhere, farming. Gilbert John Livingstone Proctor (1875-1959) had married 
Jessica Margaret Wells in 1907 in Victoria in 1907 (VBDM).  
 
In the early 1920s, the railway line from Melbourne to Heidelberg (and Rosanna) was 
electrified. This heralded a wave of subdivisions in the Rosanna area when a number of 
farm holdings were broken up for residential development. Subdivision was strongly 
encouraged, with the new suburb of Rosanna touted to become a ósecond Ivanhoeô (ref: 
subdivision plan, HHS). 
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In 1924, allotments on the óArden Chase Estateô, bounded by Millicent Street, Lower Plenty 
Road and Rosanna Road, were advertised for sale. The estate was described as óthe 
Crown of Rosannaô and adjoined the southern boundary of the allotment on which the 
óArden Chaseô residence was situated. The local newspaper announced: 
 

Arden Chase Estate, on the Rosanna and Plenty roads, is to be sold in blocks by 
Messrs Coghill and Haughton, of Melbourne and Heidelberg, on October 4. There 
are 40 villa sites and 11 shop sites, close to Rosanna railway station. The situation 
is attractive, and the terms easy (Hurstbridge Advertiser, 19 September 1924, p. 
2). 
 

The house with the present-day address of 22 Arden Crescent, was marked at that time 
as being the residence of óMr Proctorô (Real estate advertisement for subdivision held by 
HHS, Ref M0002). A photograph that appears on the real estate flyer shows the house 
known as óArden Chaseô surrounded by a garden, with its tower overlooking open 
paddocks (real estate flyer, HHS; Herald, 27 September 1924, p. 18). The house was 
described at that time as follows:   

 
The residence is built of W.B. and Stucco with iron roof and a dominating outlook 
tower. Eight Rooms, including Entrance Lounge (18ft x 20 ft), Dining Room (24 ft 
x 12 ft), Sitting Room (18 ft x 16 ft), Bedrooms (14 ft x 12 ft) with Alcove (12 ft x 
13ft), 12 ft x 10ft, 12ft x 9 ft6in), Vestibule and Kitchen with Range. Water laid on, 
Laundry with copper and troughs. Bathroom P.E. Bath and Heater, Glassed in 
Fernery adjoining Eastern Verandah, Verandah South and West sides also. The 
House is well fitted with built-in cupboards and wardrobes and has Electric Light 
and Water. (Sales notice for óArden Chaseô, 1924; source: Heidelberg Historical 
Society) 

 

 
Figure 4 Detail from real estate advertisement for óArden Chaseô subdivision in 1924, showing 

the original decorative Federation-era details of the house (source: Heidelberg Historical Society 

collection, ref. M0002) 
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Figure 5 Detail of map produced by real estate agent for sale of Arden Chase Estate in 1924 

(Herald, 27 September 1924, p. 18) 

 

 
Figure 6 Enlarged detail of óArden Chaseô house block, from map produced by real estate agent 

for the sale of Arden Chase Estate in 1924. This shows the house, garden, front path and 

outbuildings (Herald, 27 September 1924, p. 18) 
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Figure 7 View of Rosanna c.1942-51 showing farmland; the tower of óArden Chaseô can be seen 

in the far distance slightly right of centre middle (source: Heidelberg Historical Society 

collection, ref. P3836) 

In 1925 the house was situated on an allotment of land comprising ó7 acres 9 perches or 
thereaboutsô belonging to Gilbert John Proctor, sole proprietor, of Rosanna Road, Rosanna 
(C/T Vol 4999, Fol. 999787, dated 7 April 1925) By 1936, Proctor was listed as an agent 
rather than as a farmer (ER 1936). 
 
 

 
 
Figure 8 Certificate of Title Vol 4999, Fol. 999787, dated 7 April 1925 (source: Land Victoria) 
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Figure 9 Certificate of Title Vol 4999, Fol. 999787, dated 7 April 1925 (source: Land Victoria) 

 
A Charles Pratt Airspy aerial photograph of c.1930 shows the farmhouse in Arden 
Crescent. This photograph shows the garden planted with fruit trees and well developed 
hedges on the property (source: State Library of Victoria, Accession No. H91.160/385). 
 

 
Figure 10 Detail from Charles Pratt, c.1930, aerial photograph showing óArden Chaseô (source: 

State Library of Victoria, Accession No. H91.160/385) 


